Fire Commissioners Meeting
October 9, 2018 at 5:30 p.m.
976 Main Street, Freedom Hall, Cotuit, Massachusetts

Called to order at 5:30

Present: Commissioner's Rick Pisano, Kevin Conley, Adam Zais and the Fire Chief, Paul Rhude

Public Recording: n/a

Public Comment: Cynthia Gardner wanted to remind the Board that according to the By-Laws the committee needs to hold at least one monthly meeting. Commissioner Zais addressed that with an apology to the citizens of Cotuit that he was not available.

Minutes: Motion made to approve August 14 minutes with no changes, seconded, all in favor

#### **Chief Report**

# **Monthly Activities:**

- Report is combined for the last two months. (attachment A).
- Commissioner Pisano asked about the citizen complaint category as his hasn't seen that before-this report comes from information the Chief pulls off another report, the complaint is usually someone burning without a permit and a neighbor call it in for investigation, not an operations or activities complaint. Discussed mutual aid graph (attachment B) \*note the bottom of the mutual aid graph page saying 'to Mashpee' will be changed to say 'from Mashpee'. When Chief Rhude and Commissioner Conley met with the Town of Mashpee they agreed the numbers were correct. Commissioner Conley discussed the meeting on September 17<sup>th</sup> with Rodney Collins, the Mashpee Town Manager, the Chief of the Mashpee FD and the Deputy Chief. Discussed concerns about the mutual aid, the Town Manager was very supportive and is committed to taking steps about how to solve the problem. A follow up meeting is scheduled for November 14 to discuss the status, and steps Mashpee is taking to address the problem

## Administrative:

- Senior S.A.F.E programs: Cotuit FD got the grant for this year, supporting fire prevention programs. Chief Rhude and Chris Dauley went to an open house event last week at the Barnstable Senior Center. This afternoon, a talk about fire safety along with Hyannis's fire extinguisher training demo was scheduled, but due to an oversight the BSC's newsletter it has been rescheduled. CFD has been busy inspecting/supplying smoke/carbon detectors in seniors' homes with the funds from the SAFE grant.
- Our EMS Officer Clark put in a grant for a power assist for the ambulance, which would assist getting the stretcher into the back of the ambulance to reduce back injuries
- FF Emerson has been putting the iPads into vehicles which allows calls from dispatch to go straight to iPads with directions, details, and access to SOPS. Also allows dispatch to see where the vehicles are to direct them to incidents, hydrants, and other resources.
- Still working with town of Barnstable and Open Cape for the fiberoptic. CFD is working alongside with COMM to get the fiberoptic and we also hope to look into getting a security system down the road, this will be an ongoing project

## Training:

• Have a live fire training with Mashpee at the Barnstable Fire Academy. Next week have FF rehab training. LT Pouliot previously distributed a power point presentation for the Officers to review with their crews. EMS Office Clark attended the DICO class (dedicated infection control officer) last week

- and received training get everyone up to speed on preventing injuries and learned the steps taken to handle future contaminations.
- 266 has been in the water for a few weeks now. FF McPherson and LT McNamara have been completing a lot of training on the boat including training at the Sheriff's department regarding the navigation system, once familiar with it will train the rest of the crews.
- Next month will perform fire hose testing at one of the well sites. These tests are to be performed once a year to bring the hose up to pressure for 10-15 minutes to look for any leaks.

## Apparatus:

- Everything is in service
- Working on the docking issue with Counselor Jessica Grassetti, the Harbormaster, and the Town Management.
- The new 260 is due at the end of October, need to get the lights/sirens installed should see it at the end of November
- Chris Dauley will then work on surplus options for the old 260 and 269. Commissioner Conley asked about the colors/ logo on the new truck and depending on cost the choices. Chief Rhude will get some pictures of different options for next meeting.
- Chief Rhude discussed the naming contest-which will be posted on the Facebook page once it is decided how to organize the contest. Chief would like to have a christening ceremony in the spring, during this ceremony would announce the contest winner for the boat naming and offer them a prize-possibly a ride in the boat to MV. Commissioner Conley likes the contest idea, would like to look into the insurance liability for transporting a non-employee. Chief Rhude suggest the department buy an insurance bond for that occasion. Note made that the Commissioners will review the submissions for the boat naming, not to be picked out of a hat.

## **Pro EMS report:**

discussed the receivables (attachment C)

#### Personnel:

- Per the contract, a promotional test needs to be given. The test will be given in May of next year date tbd. We contacted various consultants/companies about the testing, and received three bids, the lowest bid was from Sylvester Consultants-Chief Rhude suggests going with them. Motion made to accept the bid as described, seconded, all in favor
- Have a new intern from Barnstable HS. He comes into the station a few hours everyday to learn about the fire service.

#### Facilities:

- Will have the driveway completed the first few weeks of November
- Working on getting the roof bids, spoke with procurement officer at the Town of Barnstable for
  options, is a little more complicated than expected, will review options and bring make to committee
- The front lobby was painted and redecorated by Lt McNamara and Chris Dauley
- Building security-had a situation last month with a resident entering the building, went through marked
  authorized personnel only door and searched the building until they found the Assistant Treasurer on
  the second floor to assist them. For security purposes, the main door in the lobby that leads into the
  station will remain locked, however the apparatus door does not have a lock so we are looking into
  security options. From now on any of business transactions by the Treasurer's office or other business
  that needs to be done will be done so at the lobby window.

#### **Old Business:**

- Fuller Marsh Rd.-Chief had a walk through of the property (unintelligible discussion microphone was off)
- Contract proposal: Commissioner Pisano commented that as of the last meeting he withdrew the proposal that was previously submitted for fire departments office manager. He would like to discuss the package benefits offered to the non-union water department employees, which are similar but not the same as what is offered to the non-union employees in the fire and treasurer's department. Commissioner Pisano would like to find out if able to make a recommendation to the Prudential Committee to examine the status of non-contract employees benefit packages with the aim of creating a standard package that would be consistent across the departments. Discussion continued and was not mutually agreed upon to bring to the Prudential Committee as would rather discuss inhouse. Commissioner Conley suggested that at the next meeting to go into executive session regarding conversations about employees' earnings. Chief Rhude suggested waiting until next year to look at the position again. Commissioner Conley would still like to go into executive session to discuss an agreeable solution. Commissioner Pisano doesn't see an objection, and will look into putting it onto the agenda for next month.
- Annual Evaluation of the Chief: Have little established precedent to work from and have been creating it as we go on an experimental basis. The Committee has temporarily adopted the Town of Barnstable's performance appraisal system for managers as a first means of experimenting with how they want to do this. Not all three Commissioners have had time to meet with the Chief to perform the review. Commissioner Pisano discussed the areas on the form he found useful and then asked how should proceed to the next step. Chief Rhude commented (unintelligible) Commissioner Conley agreed with the chief regarding priorities of a fire chief. Feels the only variable is whether it is required in our contract to present the Chief with an evaluation. Commissioner Pisano said yes, it is per the contract. Due to the fact that Commissioner Zais hasn't had time to meet with the Chief, Commissioner Pisano suggested that the next step would be for Commissioner Zais to complete the evaluation, and in the meantime Commissioner Pisano will examine under the terms of the executive Session criteria whether or not the next step can happen in executive session as that would be the exchanging of the evaluations and of feedback. However, the end of the process (meaning the written evaluation) will be submitted and he believes would be public information. Commissioner Pisano will review and also call the Attorney to get an opinion. This will be moved to the agenda for the next meeting, though it may or may not be in executive session. Commissioner Conley conscious of confidentially and suggests if not able to have a conversation of that nature in executive session suggests each commissioner create their evaluations, pass on to the committee's chairman to create a form with averages then leave it to Commissioner Pisano to do whatever write up should come from a result of the comments. If Commissioner Pisano is unable to put this into an executive session, he will send the other two commissioner's an email to send evaluations to him to consolidate and present. Commissioner Conley feels the presentation should be done in the chief's office, not in a public meeting. Though Chief Rhude doesn't mind if the evaluation is held in public, Commissioner Conley doesn't want to set the precedent to have any employee evaluations done in public format.

# **New Business:**

Hurricane Preparedness: Commissioner Pisano asked if can discuss this next session, asked for any
objections Commissioner Conley asked if there is any significant to discuss, Chief Rhude said it was
about long-term goals not immediate, Commissioner Conley agreed with holding off discussion

Motion to adjourn: seconded, all in favor